
CHAPTER- II.

PHRH30miAfS LIFE.

a) ;/

Ceneology. •

Unlike the founders of other systems, Vallabha was a
householder. He became a sannyasi in Benaras only in his' 
last days, hot only so but in his small work’Sannyasa-nirnaya*,

he 2’evealed his , thoughts on asceticism as such. As a result 

of this ,while in other systems tire have the line of teachers 
and their disciples who adored the pontifical chairs,here ■ 

we have the line of direct descendants.These descendants 

have done much to propound and explain the Samprsdayio 

theories and practices. Yallabha*s system has given us three 
orders of scholars, the Yaisnavas who were follomrers of the 

School,the Bhattas who were related to the Oosvamis by 
matrimonial alliance,and the direct descendants cfTallabha.

Out of these, the last have served the system most. They had 
the right of service of the images that they kept in their 

own possession. Many of them were great scholars. Again they 

were- looked upon with very high regard by their followers, 
perhaps because they were direet discendants of Tallabha.
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1She title’Gosyemi’ which was assumed by them and which is 

retained by them even to-day, Soes not appear to be the 

original title of Yallabha himself. Yallabha calls himself 

just’Diksita’. lYen Yitthalesa calls himself’Diksita’in 

some of his works. Yitthalesa however, was allowed to
• V

graze his cattle at Gokula,Mathura etc. by the imperial 

firmans issued by the Moghul Emperors-Akber and Jehegg ir. 

It was an account of this that Yitthalesa was called a 

Oo-SYami-'the owner of cows’and this title went on for 

centuries. Even to-day the Maharajas are called GosYamis.

Yitthalesa had 7 sons.The .third son ivas Falakrsns, 

who again had 6 sons. His second son was Yr a jane the while 

the fourth son was named Pltambara, Yrajanatha had a son

named Ersnacandra. Pltambara has two sans’Byacmlala’ and
• - *

’Yadupati’. Sylkalala was the father of Yrajapala and 

Yrajaraya, Yadupati’s son was pltambara whose son was

Purusottama. Purusottama refers respectfully to his
1father and his grand-father in his works."fe do not 

know the name of purusottama1s mother.The geneology is 

giYen on the next page.
1. Bhaktya naumi pitaml^^a Jadppatim tatam ca Pi timber am.

akdxA-v.

A.B.P.Intro.Y. 7.p. 2.
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(II).
Date and plaee, of Birth,

The generally accepted year-of Purusottama1s birth is 
Y.S.1724. Shri.Chimanlal Shastri of Bada Msndir at Surat —^

however told me that this did not appear to be correct.
I, tJierefore wrote to Pandit Kanthamani Shastri of .

Kankroli,who directed me to write .to Shri.JSrisimhalalji

Pandys of Sathadvar,who supplied me with; the horoscope of

purusottama. He has informed me that his ancestors were

appointed Jyotisis and family-priests of frosvami Yitthale-

-natha and he has got a thousand such old horoscopes. We

would like to suggest that apart from the astrological
importance, if these horoscope are published, they will

f
be very helpful in finding out the exacft dates of many of 

the Gosvamis, and thus in tracing the history of the 

family of Yallabha, Purusottama's horoscope is given in 

the appendix Mo.l. On the strength of that horoscope,^ 

we can be definite that Purusottama was born on the

10th day of the bright half of the month of Bhadrapada - • 

in Y.Si 1714, corresponding to JUD.1658.

We do not know definitely where he was born,It is 

quite likely that he was bom in Gokula, as tradition relates.
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(in).The Temple at Surat.

We do not knew anything about Purusottoma until he 
came to Surat and settled in the temple of Balakrsna as

an heir of Yrajaraya. le may here note the history of the 

image of Balakrsna till it was installed in Surat by 

Yrajahaya.

The image of Balakrsna owes its origin to the sacred 
river Yamuna. Unoe when Yaliabha went to the river for a

a bath,the image came out entangled in the sacred thread
s

worn by him, and told Yaliabha that it would come to his 

house. Yaliabha welcomed the Lord and taking the image to 

his house7 placed it together with other images in the 

Seva. There is another tradition also stating that the
1 t , i

image came from the Ksrnakupa in Yraja.it that time 

Yaliabha had five images and he was spending his time in 

their devotion 'at Adel near Prayag. .

A curious incident has also been recorded in connection 

with this idol. Yaliabha*s son Yitthalesa was just a 

child at that time. He also served the small image of 

Balakrsna,he decorated it,played with it,served it with 

the Bboga end did alsorts of things. Once he served
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f Thora’(3?R }as the Bhoga.To his surprise he found that 

the image began, to eat it.Yitthalesa thought;^that if 

the Thora.-is eaten by him in this way,nothing wiii remain 

fop him. He than tried to take it away from the image but 
Balakrsna also pulled, it in another, direction. In the mean 

time Yallabha came there and was delighted to see this 

friendship. He asked Yitthalesa to give away.the Thora 
to the idol and another dish of thora was prepared fcr 
Yitthalesa himself.

This image of Balakrsna remained with Yallabha at 
Ide^l, Kashi and Gokula.After Yallabha,it came to

Yitthalesa. Yitthalesa had sewn images in all and also 
had seven sons. So he distributed these images to his

sons thus:
Heme of the son,
(1) Oiridhara
(2) 0-ovindasaya
(3) Balakrsn&
(4}{Jokulanatha

(5) Raghun atha

(6) Yadimatha

(7) 0henasyam&

Mame of the image. 
Mathuresa. j

i

Yitthalanatha.
Bvarakadhisa.
Gokulanatha.

Gokulacandrama.

B'alakrsna.•* • •

Madanamohana.



It will be seen that the image of BalakrSna thus

came in the possession of Yadunatha,the sixth son of 

Yitthalesa. Yadunatha kept this image together with that 

of Dvarak adhi s a, an d stayed with Balakrsna,the third son 

of Yitthalesa.We do not know why Yadunatha took such a 

steps. One of the possible reasons may be that the image 

of Balakrsna is verv small.Ifter Yadunatha his son 

Madhusudana also stayed with Dvarakesa,the son of Bala- 

-krsns. Sifter sometime however Madhusudane wanted to be 

independent of Dvarakesa and hence he demanded the 

image of Balakrsna from the latter.Dvarakesa however was

not inclined to comply with that demand.‘fhe matter was 

referred to Gokulanatha, the fourth son of Yitthalesa. 

C-okulanltha told Dvarakesa that the image of Balakrsna 

belonged in fact to Yadunatha who stayed with his father 

only due to affection. Again Yitthalesa himself had 

ordered that whenever Yadunatha or any of his deeeendant 

de/sred to serge the image independently,that desire 

should be fulfilled. Madhusudana could thus get this 

image of Balakrsna. After one year’s service,the Lord

wished to remain in the company of another- image of 

Bvarakadhisa. Madhusudhna thereupon brought it to
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Aft Dvarakesa who accepted the image on the condition that 

Madhusudana should -mot demand it in future .ludhusudana 

agreed to this in writing.. Thus the images of Bvarakadhisa 

and Balakrsna were kept .in Ookulo together.After 

Dvar-akesa,they were served by his son Siridhara.Giridhara*e 

son Dvarakaaatha possessed the images after his father,He 

served them together with his sister Hahgabetljl and 

his wife Jsnakivahuji.Dvarakanatha went‘to Kashi for study 

and managed to get the SarasvatTmantra an his tongue.

He became a profound scholar and then returned to his 

father at 0-okale. But the same night, the God Bvarakadhisa
Z£

informed him that he had committed the fa^rft of1 Anyasraya* 

by resorting to the Ssr&svatimantra and therefore he 

was no longer fit for devoidon .He had to leave his house. 

Similar such incident^ is also reported in connection with 

his father Siridhara.His wife Jan aid therefore with the 

help of Gahga adopted Yr8jabhusana,son of SrTvallabha,,

,in the year 171?,V.S.6n the eighfi&ay of the bright'half 

of Bhadrapada.

This deed of adoption was challenged by Yr a jar ay a, 

son. of liyamalal0,1^0 recently returned to Gokuls from 

Kashi .He demanded one of the two images served by the
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trio of Oangn, Janaki and Yrajsbhusana. The demand .of, 

Yrajaraya was refused. He thereupon approached the 

Emperor but without any result.He then went to Gokula 

with festfe some associates slid took away both the images 

by force. The matter was referred to the Emperor 

Aurangzeb,who ordered that the images should be returned 

to Vrajabhuswaa. Yrajaraya again met the Emperor in a 
forest and pleased him. He reiterated his demand in

the form of a request. The Emperor however deed not qgrea. , 

Yrajaraya then asked for only one image,that of 

Balakrsiie as a right.The Emperor accepted the request 

and issued the necessary order, ifi/ith this oraer in hand*

Yrajaraya came to Gokula,but Gang! and JInakT together 

with Yrejebhufeaa went to Agra. When Yrajaraya went to 

Agra,they left the place for Ahraedabad,taking away with 

them both the images. They stayed there in an underground 

room and served the images secretly. Yrajaraya came to 

Ahmedaoad and began his search for the images. After four 

months he could find out where the images were kept.Cb.ee 

he found that thousands of betel leaves were daily purchased 

from me shop. He thereupon asked the shop-keeper who 

informed him that those betel leaves were purchased far 

the images,that were kept secretly in a house in the



43

Saipur locality. Vrajariya took the help of the Moghul 

Viceroy in Ahmedabad and went to that place. At that

time both the images were lying in a cradle,and Grange,., 
Jahaki and Vrojabhufeana were serving them. Vrajariya 
showed to them the imperial order and took away the
smaller image of Bala krone with his own hand from the 

cradle. Jahaki was very angry at this and cursed 

Vrajariya to the effect that as he was taking away the 
image from the cradle, there would be no cradle in his 
house. Vrajariya accepted the curse and. left Ahmed abed.

From Ahmedabad'Vrajariya came to Surat. On account 
of his scholarship and his devotion to the Lord,he
could exercise ^ery good influence on the local Veisnavas. 

Be settled in Surat aid built a temple of his own in 

Y.S.1727. As he had no sen,he adopted Purusottama as his 

heir, Purus attains, thus occupied the pontifical chair of 
Surat after Vrajariya.

The account given sbotsrb is according to the 

tradition current in the Sampradaya. It seems to have 

a fairly large degree of historical truth. There is 

another tradition current in the Sampradaya,explaining 

how purusottama could secure the image of Baiakrsna.lt



is said that pnrusottama tooK away this image from Ookiils 

and brought it to Surat,hiding it in the locks of his hair. 

On account of this the Maharaja in Gokula cursed 

Purusotiama with childlessness.This tradition does not 

appear to'be correct. That Purusbttama could secure the

image of £alakrsna from Yrajaraya, is borne put by the 

statement of Purusottama himself. In the introductory 

verses in his Snubhasyepraka^a, purusottama pays homage to 

Yrajaraya and says;

Yande tarn Yrajarajam anvayamanim yadrocisa madrs'o- 
Pyasin murdhni krpaparah Prabhuvarah Sribalakrsnah svayam.2

The historicity of the feud between Yrajaraya on the 

one hand and Gangs, Janaki and Yr a j a bKu s an a on the other 

is corroborated by documentary eTidonce also. In the 

Sudden Diwaui Adaulat Case No.43,was produced a release 

executed by Gsnga,JahakX,and Yrajabhusana to/ Yrajaraya. 

The document which is given in appendix No.2,bears the 

date third day of the bright half of fche first Asvina,

Y.S.1737,corresponding to 1681 A.P. It is stated m the 

document that they had settled their old dispute regarding

2. A.B.P.Intro.Y. 7.p.3.
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the two images and the Paduka of the he crya. The idol of

BHakrsna should bs given up to frajaraya,while that of 

Dvarakanstha should be kept by them. Ganga should keep 

the Peduka till her death and after that the Padaka would 

devolve to frsj-areye. It was stated in conclusion that 

no cause of dispute remained between the parties after this. 

The document ires-signed by Harireya.san of ftalyanaraya and 

others as witnesses. -

It appears from the document that the quarrel between

fra jar ay a on the one hand aid Gahga, JdhakT, and fra jabhusana 

cm the other went on f or- a long time. Hariraya,who was a 

famous personality laving at that time in the Sampradaya, 
seems to have used, his good offices to'work out a 

compromise solution.

On^mportent point should however be noted in this 

connection. The year,given in the document is ¥.8.1737.

The traditional aef'ount given above informs us that Vrajariya 

came to Surat after receiving the idol of Balakrsna in 

f.S.1727. In the Gujarat Sarvasangraha prepared by i£avi

Karm8dsshankar,it is stated that the temple of Balakrsna
3at Kanpith was1 built in 1635 1.1).

3. Gujarat Sarvasangraha p.531.



In the fiist-rry of Kenkroli, Pond it Kantbamani Shastri 

expresses certain doubts about the authenticity of this 

document cn the following grounds*-

(1) The script of the document is Gujarati;and it is 

quite possible also but as Gahgabetiji herself, used Hindi 

(Yraj) in all her dealings, the language of the document 

should have been Hindi(Yraj) and not Gujarati.

(2) Ten years before the date of this document all of 

them left Gujarat and settled in Mewed.

-(3)Gahg8betlji was not alive in V.S.1737.

(4)When all of, them were in jjhmedabed.in Y.S.1727, 

there is no evidence to show that Hariraya also stayed in 

Gujarat.

Gn these grounds,Kanthamarii Shastri says that the 

document is doubtful. It is likely that Vrejaraya might 

have settled firmly in Surat by about T.S. 1737 and might 

have got this document prepared so as to avoid any problem 

in future.4

Shri.Chimanlai Shastri of the Bada Mandir at Surat 

is writing a history of the idol of Balakrsna and the

4. Kaakroli.Part.II.appendix Mo.2.pp.154-155.



Bad a Mandir, Surat. The work is not yet published. Shri.O. H. 

Shastri informed me of his arguments which are as follows*. -

(1)The correct year in the document should be Y.S.1.727 

and not 1737.According to mathematical'consideration the 

additional month of Alvina 'is found in Y.S. 1726-2?.Be also 
supplied me with a table showing the adaiticaiai months.The

relevant portion of the table is given below:-

Ssmvst Year: 
beginning 
with Kartika.

-Ssmvat year 
beginning with 
Caitr-a.

Saka^ year. Additional
month.

1723 17,24 1589

1724 Vkh 1590 Jyestha.
1725- 1726 1591 '

1726 17^7 1582 Alvina.

1727 1|38

r|29

1593

1728 1594

1729 1730 1595 Sravan a.

1730 if 31 1596

1731 1732 1597

1732 1733 1598 Jyestha.
1733 1734 1599
1734 1735 1600

1735 1736 1601 Yaisakha
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Sam vat Year;
beginning 
with Mrtika.

Samvat year ; 
beginning ’with 
Oaitra.

§aka year ; Additional 
month.

1736 1737 1602
1737 1738 1603 Bhadrapsd a
1738 1730 1604

1730 1740 1605

1740 1741 1606 A§adha,

(2) The document was produced before the court ill 

the Sudder Oiwani Adaulat ease'So. 43.

(3) Hariraya had mastery over Gujarati language,as can 

be seen from the Padasthe composed in Gujarati.It is likely

that as the writer of the s&id document was a Gujarati,

Hariraya might have got it written in Gujarati,and Gahgabetiji

and others signed it.

(4) Gahgabeti ji died in V.S. 1736. Hence the date of the 

document cannot be V.S.1737.Aurangzeb attacked Mathura in 

Y. 8.1726 and so the trio of Gahgabeti ji, Jahaklvahujl and 

Trajabhusana could not stay in Gokula.ln Y.S.172?,Hariraja

was about 80 years of age.Sri Bathaji was shifted from ,

Giriraja to Mewad in Y.S.1728 and that is why the Pitotsava 

/*of Sri fsthajl was celebrated in Mewad in V.S.1728.There is



a possibility that Hariraya lived in Gujarat in Y.S.1726-87,
ce

because Mathura was not peaceful and the resident in lewad 

was not yet established. In the letters that Hariraya wrote 

to his younger brother C ope £ vara, there are references to 

Surat and to one'Gujarati gentleman named Premaji. liar in ay a

visited Gujarat very often.The news 'of the death of 

Gopesvare’ s wife was known to him when he was in'Gujarat.

It appears from all this,that the idol of Balakrsna 

was brought to Surat in Y.S.172?.As regards the date given 

in Gujarat Sarvasangraha,it can be understood as the year 

in which the temple was built completely.

We do not knoiv when Purusottama came to Surat.Any way 

he did not come to Surat before V.S.17B7,¥e also do not 

know when Vrajaraya died and when purusottama succeeded 

him,.After Purustttama, the image was given to another 

Purusottama,son of Muralidhara and great Grandson of 

Vrsjalamkare.This purusottama had a son called Govardhana.

As he died without any male issue, his wife Maharanivahujl 

adopted Gokulotsava,who belonged to the family of . the 

fi-r&% son of Yitthslesa. Thus the image went to the 

possession of the first house.On the next page we have

shown how the image.of Salakraaa has changed hands.,by means 

of a chart.
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Chert showing hcwr the idol of Balekrsna changed hands.

I. Ysllabke.
I

g.Titthale^a.
* *

I
S.Yadunatha.(Sixth son of Yitthale^e).

I

4. BSl8krsna.(Third son of Vitthalefia).I •'* ,

5. Bv8rake48(Sor!. of Belekrsna).
I *‘_

6. Madhasuflexia(Son of Yodunathe,).

7. Dvarakeka.(Saroe as Bo.o).
I

S.Giridhara.(Son of Ovarakeda).
I

9.Dvarak8hntbe(SGn of Giridhera).
I _ '

10. GehgFf(Sister of CTerakenatha), Jsaakl^vyife of Dvarakanatha),
Yt a j abhus an a (S or. of 'SrTYallabha).
I

II. Yrajaraya(Son of feyamalgia).
I

12. Purusottaffle(Son of Pitarobara).
I

13. purusoti;ama(Soii of Mnrairdhara),
I

14. Co?ardhaneda(£on of purufottsjiia,iio. 13).
I15. M ah sr an fy aim j f(W i f o of GoYard.haj3.eda),
I

16. Gakulotsava(Adopted by IsharaiUYahuii).



(IT).
Study and Scholarship.

{■«’

We do not know much about the childhood of Puruso^tamC 

His teacher was Krpnacsncira, whose date of birth is probably

¥.0,1651. He was the son of 7rajaaatha,the second son of 

Balakrsns, the third son of Titthale^a. He was a, very great 

scholar. Kirbhayarlme Bhatta in his Kalpavrksa calls him 

,Sastrsvitt8/i)&,! ' We do not know much, about the life of

this Xrsnaeandra. The £ ha va pr ak a s i ka vr 11 i is ascribed to
* » • ■

him, Purusottaraa pays homage to him as his preceptor in the 

beginning of his .Anubiiesyaprakasa. Shri Telivala things that 

very probably Purusottama owes much fco Irsnacandra for the 

profound scholarship, which is revealed in his works. 

Telivala says that Purusottama is obliged by 'two Qosvamis , 

Yrsjariya end Krsnacandra. A camper is on of the works of 

Trajaraya with those of purusottama would show that there is

5- Svam Sri Bflskrsiienam jvesthosyaavaya Iritah* •* * * * ■ * Ji

YrajanathabMdhaSyatha dvitTyatanayssye tu ;

Irspacandra iti kbyefto aandanah s astra.vi ttamah.Kalpavrksa. 
quoted by T'elivala in fenunada Vol.IJio.S,

i

6. Tatputfan Saha suhubhir ni jagurun Irikrsnaeandrahveyin.,..

A.B.P„Intro,Y.?.p.2.



a basic difference in their respective methods of presentation. 

Naturally the profound scholarship of purusottama does not 

owe its origin to the genius of Vrajaraya. It is likely

that it may be due to the teaching of nrsnacaadra. The 

argument of Telivala appears convincing,but the term fturu 

fflay^ mean only the initiating preceptor end nothing more. 

Teliwala also refers to the Bhavaprakesika vr11i and compares 

it with the Anubhasyaprakasa. The Bhavaprakasikavrtti is 

a very suspicious work aid we will discuss its relation with

the Anubhlsyaprakasa in the next ohapter.lt is difficult to 

say anything for or against the view of Telivala'that the 

scholarship of Purusottama owes its origin to the teaching 

ot Brsaacaadra'.

There is one curious tradition in the Sampredaya,which 

tries to account for the scholarship of Purusottama.lt is 

said that when purusottama was only seven years old,one 

great Pandit (Appaya DTksita according to the Sampradaya) 

came to Surat and challenged the scholars for the SBIstrlrtha. 

As the elderly persons in the Surat temple were absent, 

Purusottama’s mother accepted, the challenge and said that
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her son would he prepared for the Sastrartha after three 

days. Purus Ottawa then went to the underground room in 

the Surat temple and continuously muttered the Sarvottama- 

-stotra for three days and nights.(According to seme he 
muttered the Trividhahasavali.) At the end of this the

Lord Balakrsnajfallabhaearya and Vitthalanathaji presented

themselves before him end blessed him with a thorough

understanding of all the works,if he saw just the beginning

and the end of the same. When Purusottama pays homage to

Balskrsna in the Anubhasyapraka^a he says;

ifrldan Sribalakrsnah paramakarunaya manmanah prerayatva

BKasyartham yo' tigudham prakatitam akarot ssmpradtaye-
-nivrtte...?

The verse is' taken as a proof for the tradition by some. 
After the blessings that he received,purusottama received 
the blessing from his mother also. He was thus fully 

prepared for the Sastrartha and defeated the Pandita in 

Surat.

Whatever may be the value of the traditional story, 

Purusottama’s scholarship is really profound.He had a 

th©rogfeh study of all the Bhasyas. He refers to almcfet 

all of them at the end of the Sutras or Adhikaranas in

7.A.B.P.Conol.Y.l.p.1441.
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his Anubhasyaprakasa. He knows of six Bhasyas,of Samkara,

R8m^uja,&aiva,Bhaskara,&ladhva,and Bhiksu. At one place 

when Yallabha refers to someone by 'Ka&cit parasabdena 

dehadia iha’,Purusottama says in his comments,’Idam

cana prasiddhasadbhasyastham... Ata idanim utsannasyaiva
8 • ' ' ■ ;

Kasyacin matasyollekhah1. It may appear rather curious 

that Purusottama does mot refer to lumberks at ail, 

not only so, but even does not' appear to know of him. -

He also refers to Yacaspati,laystirtha,and Yedaritadesika, 

the famous followers of Samkara,Madhva,and Ramanuja 

respectively. Regarding the literature of his own 

school,his study is so very deep that he points out 

where and what exactly Yitthalesa added to the bulk .of 

his father's works. Even in minor commentaries,such as 

those on the sixteenth tracts,he shows a thorough study 

of the interpretations given by the elders of the^ school, 

like Dev8kInandana,fiaririya,Caca G opl s a, D var ake § a, etc. 

Apart from the Vedahtic works,he reveals & profound 

study of the authoritative wopks of other systems also.

He refers to the BKattas,the Prabhakaras,Kapila,Isvara~

-krsna,Gautama, Ransda,tTd©yana,Partiiasarathimisra,

Maithili Bhavadeva Mi£ra,Y8naraalid'asa,the Bauddhas,

8.A.B.P.lII.ii.6.P.885.
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the JainaSjIadhusudaaa'Sarasvati,Appaya DTksita and many 

others very often.He also refers to pan in i, P a t an j al i, 

and BhattojT DTksita,and even Ramakrsna, the author of 

Siddhantaratnakara. He shows his study of rhetorics and

refers to Kavyaprakasa,Bhvanyaloka and similar standard 

works on the subject. He refers even to Arkaprakasa,a ' 

work on medicine and discusses how the Oihiya^pots are 

manufactured.His study of the Pharmasastra-nibandhas is 

simply astonishing as can be seen by the scores of references 

to such works in the Dravyasuddhi and TJtsavapratsha.He is 

thoroughly well-versed in the sacred lore.His passages 

beam'with the references to the Srutis,the great Epics,

b'mrtis and Pur an as. From the classical literature, he .refers
« *

to prabodhacandrodaya. He also refers to Marasimha Mehta 

the famous Gujarati poet-saint.The above is not an 

exhaustive list of the works referred to by him^but it 

would be sufficient to show how great a scholar Purusottama 

was. There is a traditional verse in the Sampradaya,showing

that he was a very great scholar and composed about nine 

lacs of verses.The verse runs; ■ ,

Kasld ena samah samastanigamasmrtyiditattvarthavid •

?akta capratimah sadahsu vidusam adyapi bhumau budhah,
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Yah sarvam navalaksapady&kamitapraudhaprabandham vyadhat 

Sa Srlman Purusottama vi jay at am Aearyaeudamanih.

Purusottsms was not only a greet scholar himself, 

but be also kept so many other scholars with him.Purusottama 

does not appear go have been a man of very narrow outlook.

Whenever he found a pandit,irrespective of the system which 
that particular Pandit followed,Purusottama treated him 

with due respect. It is perhaps because of this that 

Purusottama is very exact in his references to other 
sys terns..aVd

(?)

Travels and Digvijaya,

purushttams is said to have travelled all over India.

He went to various provinces and challenged all the great 

Pandits of the time for the (Sastrartha. This is the reason 

why he was given the title of Dasadigantavijayl. It is said 

that he won over many of them and received mitten stefcsnts 

of his victory form them. My efforts to secure those 

statements have not been fruitful.If they ere found out, 

it may be possible to trace the account of his travels.

He is also said to have gone to Pumas very often.
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Dumas is a piece of resort on the Sea-shore,about ten 

miles from Sarat.lt is, said that purusottama wrote many of

his works there.Prof.M.O-.Shastri goes still further and, 

says that after finishing the daily work in the mornix^g 

and serving the Lord Bilekrsna with Rajabhoga,purusottama 
went to Dumas every day .He -stayed there for* the whole dey 

and returned in the evening to serve the Lord Balakrsna 

again .When he. went to Dumas,he kept with him cartloads of 

Boqks.lt is impossible to believe that Purusottama went 

there every day in those days when the means of communi- 

-cation and transport were not speedy.

Shri.Telivala in his account of purusottama*s life 

says that purusottama used to go to Dumas very often.Many 
of'his works'were written and copied there. Telivala further 

says that Purusottama gave some sort of a letter to a 

Brahmin Devotee of his at Dumas and the descendants of that 

devotee are still alive.

Though I have not been able to get any definite 

information regarding this* I could get some hints from 

Dumas,which I visited often in connection with this purpose. 
There is ^temple of Ranchhodji ,built in December 3956.
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The image however is old by centuries.lt is made of black-

stone and is similar to that of Dvarakadhisa at Dakar with
v

the order,PadmafCakrs,Oada and ISamkha. Below this image 

certain letters are inscribed. The first line could be read 

with difficulty. It reads*.

The second line could not be read because it is below the 

pTtha,upan which the image is fixed. There are five other 

copper images and also a conch.All of them appear to be 

very old.

Shri.Chhaganlal -Dslpatram Upadhyay,Popularly known as 

Chbaganlal Shestri,offers his service to the image.He stays 

just near the temple.When approached,he readily showed his 

eagerness to give me as mush information as he could. He

informed me abopt some hearsay in Duraas that one hosvami 

TiaKaraja ,who wes perhaps a very great scholar,used to 

come to Dumas before some two hundred and fifty years or so. 

As regards the image of Ranchhodji he told me that it was 

quite possible that some one might have brought it in a ship 

in the Barm days of Hinduism. His family was in possession 

of this image since centuries,and he was not in a position 

to inform me when and how exactly his ancestors came to
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possess/ this imege.It/diff'ieult to make out exactly what 

is meant by the letters which are inscribed under the image, 
iecording to Shri.tJpedhysy ’&rl Sutra’ means that the image 

is of Laksmlnarayana.j^’iaharaula’ can not he understood by 

us.It may perhaps signify that the image is from Rajasthan 

or Hutch .The image does not appear to owe its origin to 

South Gujsrst.Shri.Dpadhyay further informed/ me that in 

the Talar Falia,where his ancestors were staying at first, 

there wes a fairly large number of liagar Banias living in 

Dumas in that street. The hagar Manias are generally 

Taisnares belonging to the pustimarga. Thus there appears to 

have been some sort/ of Faisnavite influence of the Pusti- 

-marga,exercised on the ua;tires.of Duraas.lt is very likely 

that the said influence .sight hare come from Surat which is 

the nearest centre of the Pustimarga.Shri.Upadhyay-also’ 

informed me that his ancestors possessed many Sanskrit 

manuscripts but unfortunately they could not be preserred.

He showed to me one old manuscript of 'the Ramayana of

VaLaTki. The manuscript is now deposited in the manuseript- 

-library of the Chunilal Gandhi Tidyabharsn,Surat.As the

manuscript is important for our purpose,! have given a



short description and the colophons of the manuscript in 
appendix Bo.4. The following points should be noted in

this connection: -

(1) The manuscript was copied in V,S.1786#Purusottama 

who was born in Y.S.1714,lived a fairly long life end 

inspite of his gift deed in Y.S. 1781,we can say that he 
lived even after that time.The question will be discussed 

later in this chapter,but there is nothing wrong in 

assuming that purusottama was living in Y.S, 1786.

(2) The handwriting found in the folios of the nlnda 

YI,were seen by Shri.Chimanlal Shastri,Secretary of the 

Balakrsna Suddhadvaita Maftesabha,Surat.He told me that 

-there are manuscripts in the Surat temple,with a similar 

handwriting and it is very likely that the scribe might 

be one and the same.

(3) That the manuscript has been found at Dumas leads
us to/fairly reasonable conjecture that it might have been 

copied at Dumas. Had it been copied elsewhere,it is not

-likely that the ancestors of Shri.Upadhyay might have 

possessed it.

(4) In the very beginning of the Banda I vie have*0m 

namo Bhagavate Vasudevaya* which precedes the salutation
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$0 Rama. It is really Curious in a manuscript of Hamaysne*

In the beginning of the Kanda 1 we have one verse!

Jit am Bhagavata tena Earina lokadharins, 

i^jona vifevarupana nirgunena gunatmana.

This verse is followed by the usual langala,1Jayati 

RaghuvenSstilakab...f. The verse shows the contradictory 

attributes of the Lord.That Brahman has contradictory 

attributes is advocated by Yaliabha slotie and by no other 

ItfSrya. What is the use of this'additional verse In the

manuscript of Ramayana? Both these points show that the 

owner as well as the scribe must have been definitely a

follower of the Sudclhadvaita.

Thus it is clear that Puruaottama was present in 

Dumas when the manuscript was copied out,and it is very -

likely that he stfev it,if he did not own it.Be might have 

given it to his followers in Dumas and perhaps some one

ancestor of Shri.Upadhyay might have got it.It is also 

likely that Purusottame might have had some connection with 

the image of Ranchhod ji,but about this we do not know any- 

-thing.
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.in).
Private Life .

We do riot know much about tie private life of Purusottaraa,
t. *

Ee had three wives,RanT,Candravali,end padmavatT.He had

two sonSjYedupati and Darnedere end one daughter named
/

Ilaripriya. Yadupati was born in Y.S.1749,and Tiamodara in 

Y.S. 1760. Both of them died during his life time. Trad it ion 

runs that as Purusottama brought the image of Balakrsna 

concealing it in the locks of his hair,tbe R-osvami Maharaja 

©f Ssnfc that place became very angry and cure.ed him with 

childlessness. lienee e^en though-Purusottama had two sons, 

both of them died very young.

purusottama seems to ha\re passed most of his time in 

the composition of his works. Many of his works were written 

in Dumas. In Surat,it is said that he used to write

in an underground room in the Surat temple .He kept about 

nine scribes with him. He dictated to them whatever he 

thought at a particular time.Thus some three or four works 

were being ?/ritten simultaneously.This perhaps is the reason 

why there are mutual references found in many of bis works, 

as Shri.l'elivala thinks. It is said that he used to prepare 

three copies of all his works.One was kept for himself,



while the other two were sent to other Gosvoiais. He had 

cordial relations with Gosvarai fitthalaraya Campasenivala 

and one of the copies was sent to him. Whenever he went out.

he kept with him cartloads of boo&s rather than clothes or 

ornaments and things of luxury. Teliwala says that he 

kept some about SZ carts. Purusottama again had a very big 

library of his own. Ke used to study the works of Yailabha 

end Vitthalesa very often and used to copy out those works 

in small handwriting, Telivala saw one such Manuscript of 

the Subodhini on the first ten Adhyayas of the tenth

Skandha of the Bhagsvata. He found it very clear end the 

handwriting was quite good, purusottaoia was a very good

scribe himself. Sbn.Telivala who saw .many of his 

manuscripts while preparing critical editions of his 

works, says* « From his manuscripts we find him putting 

point where we usejf ^"a, comma; for a fulls top he makes
a

one
stroke,and for a complete idea lie makes two perpendicular 

strokes.When he wants to begin a fresh paragraph,he puts 

two perpendicular strokes and leaving s space of about 

half an inch he puts another two strokes and then begins

a fresh paragraph.Important words are coloured with red 

senna.S^ri.purusottsmejl has revised his manuscripts



atleast three or four times.. Where he thought that an 
addition was necessary he would affix a fine slip and 
re-write oyer it.Where the angle mark was above the line, 
we had tc look for the addition on the top of the page on 
the mar gin, counting the number of lines mentioned at the
end of the addition.Where the angle was below the line we 
had similarly to look for the addition at the bottom of 

9the page.*
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It appears that Purusott&ns was always busy writing 
something.This perhaps is the reason of his being called 
* Lekhavala1 .Another title given by the contemporary 
aosvamis to him was 'Vedapa^u’.It was a jeer at him.

Purugottama led s very simple life,even though like 
other nosvamis he was blessed with Vast fortune.He was 
staying in Surat,which'was at the height of its glory as
the chief emporium of trade on the Western coafct of 
lndia.lt was a main centre of business not only in fug arat 
but in the whole of India and it attracted the famous 
Chhatrapati Shivaji for plunder.purusottama was untouched 
by the pomp and glory, of the c ity .He was an author and 
scholar,end liked to remain a real author and real scholar.

9. Telivale,quoted by M.C.Parekh in 5Shri.Yaliabhaeharya.!
p. 311.
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We do not know much about him as a devotee,as much as 

we know about Heriraya. He is however said to have been a - 
very good Artist. His Holiness Hosvami Shri Yrajaratnalalji 

Maharaj of the Surat temple Obliged me by showing certain 

ar tides, whidh are kept in the Seva" and-which contain one 
picture .said to have been painted by Purusottama and five 

paper-cuts said to have been prepared by purusottama ..A sho&t *

description' of them is as follows; -

(1) The picture is of MuralTmen ohera.lt has three 
iscolours.Lard hrsna/ painted as playing upon his flute. •

There are two female deer at his feet.Above the head are 
painted the peacock-feathers.The picture is painted on the
basis of the verse*Dhanyas te mudharaataye ...etc.* ^In

the verse the G-opikss describe the female deer which are at

the feet of the Lord,bearing his Yen utn ad a with rapt

attention and worshipping him with loving glances. The idea

in the verse is aptly revealed in the picture.

(2) Paper-cut of a Palm-ii?e£,with two men ascending 

the tree with pots.below at ike root of the tree are 

designed one cow and one pot.There is a border design also.

10. Blfags'vat a Parana X. 21.31.



fhe cutting is very minute and exact. The leaves of the 

tree,the helmets of two men,and all the details,are 

quite clearly visible. The paper used is white.

.(3) Paper-cut of four rams with one face.The four

rams are shown asN / and the one face which is designed
/ \

can he'fitted to any of them in different postures.There 

is also a border design. The, paper-worisjis minute and 

the design is artistic and beautiful. The paper used

is whits.

(4) Paper-cut of a Sara tree with an artistic border. 

Below the tree are shown four birds,two cai either sides. 

The paper work is minutely executed. White paper is 

used.

(5) Paper-cut of a leafless dried up tree.The work is 

done with fineness.The paper is not white but has the 

dark colour corresponding to that of the trunk and 

branches of the tree.

(G)paper-eut of a Kadamba tree.Two apes are shown 

in the work.One is mounting the tree,while the other is 

plucking the leaves.The work is so minutely designed

that even the tail of the monkey can be seen easily.



fhe tree is fairly big.

IBider the Saru tree and the Kadambatree,the words 

’§rl’ and *&rih’ are written respectively ink.Oosvami 

Shri Yrajaratsnalalji Msharaj told me that the hand- 

- writing was of Purusottama,and that this is a proof fop

the paper-work being done by Purusottama himself.He also 

informed me that according to requirements of the 

tradition of their family,if *§rT’ is not written-on 

the paper,it can not be included in the Seva,Jiny way, 

it should be stated that the designs are fairly well 

preserved. ^

(Til)

Contemporaries.

By the time of Purusottama,the family of Taliabha

became a very big family and his descendants spread over 

almost the whole of Western India.Thus purusottama had

many contemporary (rosvamis.

11.Besides what has been described above,there- are two 

copies of the picture of Yitthale^a,said to have been,

drawn by himself .There is also a picture of Srmathajl.

In it are seen Covindaraya and others.There are alsofour
tkZero

manuscripts,/ in the handwriting of Taliabha and two m 

that of Titthale^a.



The most important and famous of the contemporary 

Oosvamis,¥Jas Hariraya»who was born in Y.S. 1649 and ififeo 

liired a fairly long life of about one hundred and twenty- 

years or so.It is said that he was alive in Y,S.l?72.He 

was thus a senior contemporary of p ur us o 11 am a .Beg ar d ing 

the connection of Bsriraya with purus ottama, two stories 

have oeen preserved by tradition;both of them,are intended 

to establish the superiority of Hariraya to purusottams, 

as a devotee and as scholar.Both of them are narrated 

below.

Since the time of Yitthalefie, there is a convention

in the Sampradaya that,whatever wealth is accumulated 

by a Posfami in the first round of his travels,should be' 

dedicated to Gcvardhanaristhajl.Aceordingly.Purusottama 

travelled all over India and with all his wealth went 

for dedicating it tofecihathajT.lt was the summer season, 

and as a rule shoes can not be presented to the Lord.

But Pur us ottama brought with him* very costly foot-wear 

studded with pearls,Looking to this,the Gosvami of that 

place allowed purusottama to present the same to SrTna tha jf 

far the limited time of Rajabhoga only.The young Oosvlmi
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Purusottama. wen ted that the shoes should be kept-for the 

whole day sad attempted to do so by giving briles to 

the chief servant of the temple.He did not think that 

this would be trouble some to 6od.Harii*aya,at that time 

was staying at Khun or,not 'very far from Nathadvar* ■ 
^rTnathajl informed him about this.Harirays immediately 

came to Fsthadvar on horse-back and ordered that the ■ ■ 

shoes be taken off.The story thus shows' that Bariraya 

was fortunate// enough to obtain the grace of Pod, who

informed him of what Bethought and felt,while Purusottama 

was not blessed with similar favour.

.toother story runs that once when Purusottama was 

dictating to a scribe his Prakasa commentary on the 

Siibodhinl,he had doubts about the exact significance 

- of some particular point. Even though he pondered over 

it for a long time,his dloubts could not be resolved.

One old lady saw him in a sorry mood and on inquiry 

could know the re as on. She said that she had heard tie 

explanation of test particular point from Ear iraya and 

she was prepared to explain the same to Purusottama.

Purusottama thereupon asked for the explanation and on 

hearing the same he was satisfied* This story suggests
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that Purusottama had to take the help of even an 

ordinary lady who just heard from Hariraya,

Both these stories are current among the followers 

of Hariraya.We do not know if there is my historical 

truth in either of them. So far as.Piirus&ttsma is concerned 

he shows the same respect to Hariraya a£ he shows to " 

others.

Another Gosfibi with whom Purusottama s'eeas to

have had special relationship,was Yitthaleraya of 

Capaseni.He was horn in Y.S.3751 and' was thus much

junior- toPurusottema.lt is said that Purusottama sent 

one copy of all his works to him .He actually commented 

upon his own Prahastaveda at his request.12

.Another Gosvami,wiih whom Purusottama seems to 

have had cordial relations was ISrivallabhs, the author 

of ’iekha'on Subodhini.Purusottaina refers to him in his 

Subodhiriiprakasa on Bhlgavata X.ivuPQ by: *Yathanevamvida 

ity atra.Yedanam wit.Bhave kvi£ ...ity artha iti

1 fo.Krtaven efam Prahostafcikam. Yittlialar'ayapramodaya'.

Prh.Yivrti.p. 846.



Wivallabhah. Tan raamapi s animat am iti’.fhe singular in 

’ferTVallabhah1 as against the plural.used in the references 

to other Goa van is, would show that ISrivsllabhaj/ was junior 

to Purusoitama.ferimLiabha’s father was Yitthalarlya 

He was bcxrn m the dark eleventh of the month of Karttika 

in V.8.1729.

Shri.11.O.Shastri could get from Yaisnava Manila! 

of .Jamnagar a list of Hos vnrois,who were contemporaries

of purusottama.T
•

be list is very long and does not appear

to be conclusive .We have given below the same with certain

subtractions;

H auie. Place. Sam vat Year.

1, GopikMhl^a — 1699

2. BaLakrsna
■ • * #

0-okula* 1700

3. Irene
* *■. *

C-oicule. 1700

4. M^dhavafeya Shergadh, 1700

f-. Yitihala^
► «

bankroll 1700

6. Yrajavailabba C-ckula. 1701

7. isfikinta 
(Son of Cabs Copies)

1701

8. Bansidhara Kashi 1702

9, Kakavallabha Mathadvar 1703

10 .it amelia la 1
•(Sen of Cacl Gopi&a)

1704
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Kane Place. SamYa

11. Gokalamsni
*

Shergadh 1705

12. Raiysharlya Shergadh 1706

13. Rauachoda Burhanpur • 1707
(Son of Yitthalanatha)

14. Ookulalakara
A

0-okula 170?

15. Yr a jar-ay a Snrat 1707

16. Dfarake^a — 1708

1?. RYarakmatha — 1708

18. Hsrirsya (lokula 1709
' (Son of Yra je&vara)

19. Baburaya Jamansgar 1711
20. Daaodara SathadYar 1711

21. Baghunatha 1711

22. Raghunatha — 1715
23. Yitthalanatha Shergadh 1715

24. Gopinatha Ookula 1717
25. Yitthale^a Shergadh 1718

26. Kalyanoraya ShrijidYar 1718

27. Muralldhara Bankroll 1718

28. 'Sfigopala — , 1719

29. G-hanabyama t 1720

30 . YrajabhUsana Kankroli“ 1720

31. YrajilankSra Gokula 1721

Year.
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32. fSlakrsna Kankroli 1721
33. Mohana ShriflidYar 1722
34. Dvaricanatha ShrijidYsr 17^2

35.0-iridhara Ookula 1725

36. GopIla Kankroli 1725

37. G-oplnatha ShrijidYar/^ 1725

38. Balakrsna • Ookula 1725

39. Jayadeva — 1725
(His descendants began the Jayogopala sub-sect)

40. Rsghunatha Rota 1'%'

41. Mathurahatha.M agarthattha. 1728

42. G-iridhara. Shrijidvar 1728

43. Oqkulaeandranfa.-----  1728

44. G-iridhara. Kota 1728-

45. GoYardhane&a.Jamnagar. 1728

46. JiYanl^l Bundikota 1729

47. Muralidhara. Kashi 1731

48. Krsnecandra. Gokula 1732

49. DYarakahatha.fiuteh-jnandYi. 1734
50. OoYardhaneha.ShrijidYar 1735

51. Ookularaya. Ookula 1736

52. Giridhara. Kashi 173?
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53. Vrajaratna. Pakula. 1737

54. Oopiiiatha Shrijidvar 1737

55. Purusottania —, 1738

(Son of MuralTdhara)

56. Vrajapala Kashi 1739.

57. Vrajanatha Shrijidvar 1740.

58. Yitthalariatha ibareli 1741

53. Mohan a Kashi 1742

60. Yehkatesa Ookul 1742 -

61. Dvarakanatha Ookul 1742

62. Yitthalanatha Shrijidvar 1743

63. Yrajan'l'tha 1744

64. luralldhara Shrijidvar 1744

65. Piridhara Dhandhuka 1745

66. PopTnatha Kota 1745

67. nokuladhi^a
V

Ookul 1745

68. MuralTdhara — 1747

69. Yisj abh ar an adlks i t a Ookul 1747

70. Yitthalaraya Shrijidvar 1747

71. Jagamiatha Shrijidvar 1747

72. ladupati Surat 1749
(Son of Purusotiama) 

73. I)i*i vats a Capaseni 1749
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74.Madh0variya Ookul 1749

75. Ookulaoatha Oiriraj 1750

76. Dshiraya Shrijidvar 1750

77, Yitthalaraya Capaseni 1751

78. purusottama Shrijidvar 1752

79. G-opala Kota 1755

80. Yadunatha Shri^fidsrar 1756

81. Vr a jar am ana Jaipur 1757

88. JTvanalal Shrijidvar 1758

83. Yrajadhlia Jodhpur 1760

84. Dsmodara Surat 1760
(Son. of Purusottama)

85. D’amodara SlirijidTar. 1761

86. Ookulacendra ShrijidTar. 1762

87. Raghuifatha — 1762

88. Prafynimna Shergadh 1762

89. Oovardhana Shrijidvar 1763

90. Yrajab&usana Ik agarthattha. 1965

91. Oopendra Ookul- 1769

92* Ramakrsna Ookul 1770

93. Jagsnnatha Kashi 1771

94. Kaiyliaraya Shrijidvar 1771
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95. Kslysnaraya Ookul 1772
96. Is kernel! a

* * 1

Ookul 1774

97. Gbsna&yama Shrijidvar 1774
98. Madhusudana Shergadh 1775
99. Balakrsns 1775

100. Msthuranatha Shrijidvar 1.775

101. Jivsnaial Kashi 1775

102. Balakrsns lathadvar 1777

103. Yrajananda Shergadh 1778
104. Balakrsns — 1778

105. Prsimhalal Ookul 1778

106. fiimanlal — 1779 “

107. Rajivalocens — 1779

108. Ookulanatha Kota , 1780

109. 0opal a Porbunder 1781

110. f-ovindaraya Shrijidvar 1781

111. Yitthalanatha Oirirsj^ 1781
112. lEJrTvallabha Kankroli 1781

113. Povindsraya Kota 1782

The original list,as I have already stated is sufficiently 

long and runs upto Y.S.1799. This much however As sufficient 

for iis to show how- big the family of 0 os vain is was at the time 

of Purusotterns.
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Coming to the scholars who did not belong to the TaEabha- 

Samprad¥ya,we find that a host of scholars and authors flourished 

in the Seventeenth and Eighteenth centuries.The famous authors 

on Dhsrmsslstra like Kamslakara Bhatta,Mitramifcra and Taidya- 

-natha Payagunda alias Balam Bhatta flourished at about the 

same time. Similarly Dinakara Bhatta and his son Gaga Bhatta 

ware also famous coin temporaries of Purusottama.Both of them 

were proteges of Chatrapati Shivaji end it is said that Gaga- 

-Bhatta was actually called upon to officiate at the coronation 

of Shivaji in 1674 A.D. BhattojT rjTksita,hoge^a and Konda- 

Bhatta were great grammarians. Gadadhara Bhatta jGoplhatha 

Maun i, Ann am Bhatta,Laugaksi Bj&Iskar a, and many, other writers 

on Eyaya end great scholars like Panditaraja Jag ami a the also 

lived in these centuries. In fact many of them were all-round 

scholars and contributed to almost all the branches of knowledge. 

Thus the'age in which Purusottama lived was an age of activity, 

though me may perhaps feel that many of the works written at 

that time were more of the nature of commentaries and compila- 

-tions,.rather than original independent works. tJew theories 

were propounded only through the medium of commentaries aid 

compila3tions.lt was thus not the creative but the interpretative 

period in the history of Indian thought.

It has been maintained according to the tradition of
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the Pustimarga,that Purusottama had direct contact,with Appayya-
^ '2r&^3r

Diksita.lt is said that Purusottama had Sasta&fes with Appayya- 

DTksita,when he was only seven years old.DTksita was a prolific 

writer and wrote some about hundred works,His father was 

Rahgara ja aid his grand-father,(according to some his great 

grsnd-father) was Yaksahsthalaearya.The gretest' question how- 

-ever that has baffled scholars,is his date.The generally 

accepted dates of his life are from 1554 A.B.to 1626 A.l>* 
Shri.Mahalinga Shastri who is a descendant of Appayya himself, 

gives his dates^s 1520 A.B to 1593 A.I). MM.Dr.P. V. Kane has
13ably discussed the question in'his History of Sanskrit Jtoetics. 1

Shri.H.0.Shastri in his Hindi Biography of Purusottama ^ has 

tried to show that Appayya was a contemporary of Purusottama.

He says that in 1657 A.D.there was a meeting of scholars in 

Kashi in the Mukatimandapa and the decision was arrived at 
there to the effect that the pancadravida Brahmins could sit 

in the same line with the Devarsi Brahmins of Maharashtra at 
dinner.The decision was signed by scholars like Khandadeva 

Mi&ra,ahd others who were present in that meeting.One of the 

signatories was Appayya DTksita. The Hirnaya-patra has been 
published in the ’Citale Bhatta Prakarsna’ of Pimputkar.Thus

IS.Behityadsrpana .Intro.pp. 307-309.

14.Avatlravadevali.Hindi Intro.pp.12-13.
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Appayya DTkgita was present in Kashi in 1657 A.B.Shri.H.O. 

Shastri further argues that Appayya is said to have met 

Jagsnnitha in Kashi,Jagannatha who was s protege of Shah Jahan , 

must have come to Kashi in or after 1658 A,D,when Aurangzeb 
put his father into prison.The point is really a complicated

one.Even if we rely on all that H.O.Shastri has said,can we 
agree that'there was a meeting of Purusottama with Appayya 

DTksita? Purusottama was born in 1658 A.B'.We should also' 

hear in mind that according to H.O.Shastri he was horn in 

1668 A.D.Yrajariya came to Surat in ¥.8.1727.i.e.1671 A.D1.

The meeting could have been possible only after that. Thus

we shall have to assume that DTksita came to Surat after
*

1671 A.D.Again according to the tradition,Purusottama was 

only seven when he discussed with Appayya and defeated him. 

Hence it must be in 1675 A.D,as the traditional account should 

tally with the generally accepted year of Purusottama’s birth 

i.e 7.S. 1724.It can not tally with the correct year i.e.V.S. 

1714,because in’that case Purusottama himself could not have 

been in Surat at the age of seven.This is too much to assume* 

The whole tradition of the Sastrartha between Purusottama and 

Appayya DTksita seems to have arisen on the strength of 

Purusottama’s composition of the prahastavade,which was a 
’slap’ to the Waives and which was intended to he a rejoinder
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t o the Sivatattvaviveka of Appayya DXksita.I am inclined

to belies that the traditional record of Sastrartha between 

Purusottama and Diksita does not appear to have mf element 
of historical truth.

Another scholar with Msom Purusottama is said to have 

direct contact according to the tradition,ifas Bhlskarafaya. 

Shri.E. O.Shastri says that some works of BAlskarayaya 

are preserved in the Babu Dixit Jade Bollection of Bensras. 

The said collection also, contains some letters written by 

Bhaskararaya.In these letters Bhaskara has passed caustic 
remarks against purusottama. H.O.Shastri says that,it 

appears from this that Bhaskara,who was defeated in the 
"Sastrlrtha by purusottama,might have referred to him with 

fangeanoe. %

I have gathered some information about Bhaskararaya and 
his teacher^ >3ivadatta Sukla from various sources.^

15, Avatar a vadevall .Hindi. Intro, p .9.

16,Sources*. (i)Bhavaii no ?ad alias Bahucerakhyati.Id.M.T. 
Jarmanvala.

(ii) Purvarnimahsa:0anganath Jha.with a critical

' bibliography by Dr.Umesh Mishra.
(iii) Lalitasahasranama with Saubhag^fehaskara.ld.

T. L.S,.Panshikar.
(iv) Sarvajanikeai-M.T.B.College,sad Sarvajanik Law 

College Magazine.October, 1941ipp. 104-107.



'Sivadatta Sukla belong to Surat and stayed in Guj jar Pali a, 

HaripurasSurat,where even today there is a street bearing 

the name of Vedabhai Sukla, as Sivadatta was popularly known. 

Isivadatta’s father was Ishadeva and his mother was Ganga, -

They were iudicya Brahmins and were deeply devoted to God 
ISiva.They had however no son.Once God Siva appeared in their 

dream and asked them to go to Somnath.if they wanted a son. 

They went cai a pilgrimage to Somnath and pleased God Siva 

and Goddess Parvatl,who blessed them with a son.The couple 

teen returned to Surat, A sen was born to them an account of 

this blessing.He was named Siva Datta or Sivaolarsy an a. When 

he was five,his Upanayana ceremony was performed and he 

married at the age of twelve.it the age of sixteen,he finished!

his study of the Yedie lore and mastered Sanskrit and 
Persian.He began teaching students even/fSat young age,

(hoe while ISiva-Datta was teaching student's,a login 

belonging to the Tripura Sampradaya of the Hatha Pantha 

came to his place.On seeing him Sivadatta could understand 

that the guest was a Sidaha login.He served him as his Guru 

for a fairly long time.When the Guru was pleased,he bestowed 

upon him the Purnabhiseka and Mahasamrsjya Diksa,which is
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considered,to be the highest honour in the’hatha Pantha.

.After attaining to this status ,feivadatta was named'Svami 

Prakasanandanatha.He soon became well known in the whole 

of India' and was honoured by all .His preceptor then went 

away,when he found that his work was finished.

So many miracles are recorded round the name of Yedabhai 

In the beginning of the sixteenth century,someone sent two 

Bunyan trees and one Palm-tree flying in the sky.Prakisa- 

-nendsnatha got them doxm with the help of Bali Tripura-- 

-sundarl.One .Bunyan tree came dam at Haripur8,Sivadstta 

placed there the Yantra of Bahucaraji for its protection.

That is known by the name of Bhavani Tad.The other tree 

came down at Begumpura and'was known as Mumbai Vad. The 

Palm-tree got down at havsari Bazar near Bhed Talavdi”.

ItsetrajseTla Bhairava was established there for its protection.

Yedabhai used to go to the river Tapti every day at

dawn for taking his bath.It is said that the Bangi was' 
calling out for prayer every day at that time.Yedabhai

used to hear it and every time he said that it was wrong,

The Muslims who heard this became very angry and complained

to the Sub a. The next day the Suba himself came there at
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dawn and as Yedabhai was going away after passing Ms usual 

remark,he was presented before the Suba,who demanded an - 

explanation from him.Yedabhai said that it was useless to

sheut when in fact it was necessary to call the devotees of 

Allah to gether to-gether for prayer.The call should be 

such that a sacking child,a grazing calf, a grinding woman 

and even the flowing water would leave their respective 

activity on hearing it.&hen Vedabhai was asked to prove his 

statement,he spoke out the Sufctas of Aihervaveda so loudly 

and seriously in the presence of o sucking child,a grazing 

calf,and a grinding woman,that all of them left their work 

and even the water of the Tapti ceased to flow for a while 

and meditated upon (tod with complete concentration.Yedabhai 

was thereupon released and he went home.fie became very famous

on account of this incident. The jealousy of other Brahmins 

however led Mm them to complain to the Sub a that as Yedabhai

was following the KaulamSrga,he used wine and such other 

things.The Suba thereupon went to Bhavani Yad personally 

on an elephant with his large retinue.Yedabhai came to

know of this and asked one of his disciples to place a blade 

of Darbha-grass on the road.The elephant of the Suba and 

the horses of his servants could not cross over this blade
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and proceed further,inspite of all their attempts to do so. 

The Sub a then sent for Yedabhai, who sent a reply that as it

was the place of Mother Goddess,one could come there only cm 

foot. The Suba thereupon went on foot to the temple and asked 

Yedabhai to shew him the contents of the pots,which were kept 

there.Yedabhai shewed him the pots in which there were only 

roses,and rose-water.The Suba was pleased at tliis,gave him 
a. valuable shawl and left.Yedabhai could not accept the

Shawl,which was given by a non-hindu.He therefore threw it 
sway in the fire-alter. This was reported/lfie Sub a, who again 

visited the.temple and demanded the Shawl.Yedabhai took out 

some shawls from the alter and asked the Suba to find out 

his own.The Suba was thus convinced of and awed by the 

superhuman powers of Yedabhai,and bowed to him with respect.

He requested Yedabhai to ask0 for whatever he wished. 

Yedabhai just said that the Suba should arrange for the 

protection of the temple.The Suba granted the wish and left.

Another miracle,said to have been worked out by Yedabhai 

is regarding the drawing. of boundary line of the crematory 

at Ash/vinikumar. At that time people were very much afraid 

of ghosts and evil spirits,which hsunted in the dark.There 

were some communities in which they observed a convention
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of carrying a dead body to the crematory within a short 

time after death.lt was again very dangerous to.,go to 

ishvinikumar at night. Once a brahmin belonging to the 

community of' Yedabhai',died at night.Yedabhai also went with 

the corpse,In the way to the crematory,the corpse was carried 

away invisibly by ghosts.Vedabhai,with his spiritual power 

could know that the body was in the possession of -ghosts,

and he took its possession from them.The Brahmins then 

requested' Ysdabhai to find, out a remedy for this.Yedabhai

then fixed nails on the ground at various places and this 

marked the boundaries,which the ghosts and evil spirits 

could not transgress.

His meeting with Bheskararaya is also said to have 
contained some miracle .Biiasksra was a very great scholar,

who wished to enter into S&strsrtha with the pandits of 

Surat. They however directed him to go to Yedabhai.When 

Bhlskera went to Earipura,Goddess TripurasiindarT was playing 

outside the house of Yedabhai,She told BKaskara that as

Yedabhai was busy with Puja,he would better itttk talk with 

the coif which was grazing there.That cot talked feith him

in Senskrit.BliSskera was so much awa-inspired at this tha t 

he bowed down -to Yedabhai when he met him and became his
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disoiple.Sifa&atta iSukla then taught him,for some time and 

gave him the Furn. abhiee ka-j^anhsamr s jys~pad a^alfm|Shim 

Bbl^brsnandanatha. '

Bhaskararaya was the second son of G&mbhTraraya and' 

Kcnambika'.He was born in Btlsg^nagari(Sangii?) and went to 

Aashi with his father .He studied the 18 lores under 

Brsimhadhvarim and Tarkasastra under G&hgiidhara Yajapeyin.

His first wife was JnandldeYl and bis second wife was named 

Faxvatidevi,who was a daughter of the brother of the Jearya 

of Msdhve * s school .He wasyfvery great scholar and defeated 

the Jgbtjss of all the schools .He wrote so many works, like
_ _ 2~c you _

Ssubhagyabhaskara 5$etubandha s Wdakaut^hala,Yarisyarabasya, etc.

Some miracles are recprded eran for Bhaskararaya. In 

the Saubhagysbhaskara he has written about 64 crores of 

Yoginls.Soiie pandits from Bon or as objected to this by saying 

that the Yog inis are 64 and not 64 crores. They went on 

discussing it with Bhalskararaya for three days,when sage 

Kumkuiaanande finally applied the water of the holy rrrer 

Gangs in the eyes of the Pandits.They could then see Mother- 

Goddess discussing with them.They then left the discussion.

It is said that he was doing the l.'libasodha Byasa.Gne who



performs bhis osnnot bows/down to enyone except his teedisr 

end istadevata. This being the case,Bha3kara generally did
mm.

not go out of .his bouse.Gaee^ however- the Aearya of Samkara’s 

mutth came to Beasras and all the Brahmine went to salute . 

him.Bhr,share, did not go there but he was .called- by the Icarya.

He went there but did not salute him.The Acarya said that 

the' Brahmins who were householders generally paid respects 

to the^fscatics and it therefore did not behove him not to 

pay his respeets.Bhaskara explained to him his position but
■"-S

the Acsrya wanted &,proof.BKaskora then put bis Benda,

Ka.manda.lu and Piduka before him end bowed down to them.
* *

Immediately all of them were rendered to pieces and were 

scattered here and there,

?.L,Psnshikar in his Sanskrit introduction to Lai ita- 

sshasrenama says that BHSskara was a contemporary of Harayana- 

Bhatta,(?-rand-fatfesr of Kamalakara Bbatta.Kama!akara finished

his ftirnayasindhu in 7.S. 1668.Hence BK&skara must have lived 

soas about fifty years before it-.Pannhikar has however

relied upon the tradition about the Vivada between liar ay an a
— — YiBhatta and Bhaskararaya. '

1?. Lalitisahasraaama with Sauohigyabhln bar a .Sanskrit Intro,



Br.Umesh Mishra in his Critical Bibliography,suffixed 

to ’PurvajnTinsnsa in its sources’by Br.Ganganath Jha says 

that Bhasksraraya lived- in the first quarter of the 18th
s _

century .His o orient &ry Satubandha on the B i ty as cq. sji i karn sva 

Tantra was written in Y, 8,1783, corresponding to 1732 A.D.

His Saubhagyabbaskara was written in-Y.25.1785?corresponding 
to 1728 i.D.^Ww Bhaskara refers to §ivaciatta l>ukla in his ' 

Saubhsgyabhiskara in the first verse thus:

Yafe ca Bri §ivadatta-Suklacsrmaih Furnlbhisikto/bhavat.1'9 

Hence he vast have come to Surat before Y.8.1 785.Burnsohtasm 

came to Surat after Y.S.172? and lived there for almost 

the whole of his life,except ecea&siaaal travels .Hence the 

possibility of direct contact between Purusottama and 

Bhaskera and even JJivsdatta <Sukla can not be ruled out.
(

(

¥e have seen above what Sbri.H.Q.Shastri has to say 

regarding the 'Sastrirths between Purus Ottawa and Bhiskara-.

18. Of.PurvamimansstCriticai Bibliography p.65.Jiso see;

Modacchiy^itayam Merabi saradrtsv asvine kalayukte,
<XX&urrYves^

Sukie sauroye n avasiysm atanuta 1c 1 i t¥s ah asr abhasyainv 

SaubhegysbhHsksra.concluding Y.l.p.240,

19. Ssubhagyabhaskara.Intro.?,l.p. 1.
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The followers of Bhaskararaya say that Bhaskara defeated the

Icarya belonging to the Yallabha Sampradaya.In the Bhaskara-
^ /

Yilasa Kavya of Jagannatha,printed in the beginning of 
the Lalitasahasran1aia,refer?to above , there are two verses 

which are important for our purpose.They are:

(t) Sivadatta §uklae aranlsadit apuraabhisekasamr a-jyah,
Garjaradebe Yidadhe jarjaradhairyam sa Yallabhaearysm.

_ _ _ _ Y.30.
(2) Lilaroatreritaya nilaealapurvaya capetikaya,

Yimatadrtam prahastam vyatanist^ vihastam abjaaibha-
—hsstsh. Y.43*

, Y.30 shows that Bhaskara defeated the Icarya of the 

Yallabha Samprsdaya,while T.43 shows that the Prahasta was 

rendered futile,by Bhaskera.lt is very likely that the second 

line of Y.30 refers to Purusottama or Yrajaraya,and Prahasta 

in Y.43 refers to Prabastavlda of purusottama.lt is likely 

that the words' Wilie aiaptcrvaya capetikaya* may be referring 

to his work,bearing the name B llacalacapetika,which might 

have been written in reply to Praha st avid a of Purusottama. 

Together with the references to purusottama^ seen byE.O. 

Shastri in the letters written by Bhaskara,both these verses 

show that Bhaskara and purusottama must have come in direct
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contact with each other and their contact was. wry probably

hot a very cordial one. As regards the result of the 

'Sastrartha, one should not be surprised to find that the 

followers of both the scholars have claimed victory for their 

side.

(Till).
Disciples of Purua6ttama.

• 1

As & Yaisaava Icarya,Purusottama naturally must hate 

had a large following in Surat.Sone of his pupils were well
t

known scholars.Unfortunately we do not know much about all 
of them. (Me such pupil was Bhatta Tula jaranjwho as his 

name indicates was-a Gujarati. Tul j aras^ was a great Pandit 

himself .Bis IJtsavanirnaya,also known as Yratotsavanirnaya

is written in Traj. It is a summary of the Utsavapratana 

of Purufottama.Tulacompiled this work at the instance

of Oovindariya.He refers in this work to Purus ott-sma as hi s
WGuru, thus: .» lia eva Utsavanirnaye asmadgurucaranair uktam.1

This is followed by a quotation :’Purvaviddhapra^astyat...etc.’
21This is found in the itsavapratena. It should be noted, that

20.I.P. p.16.

21.IJ.P. p. 112.



Ut-savsiiirnoya as well as Utsa?apratans( this/also named

Utssvsnirnaya)has been mentioned by MM.Dr.P.Y.'Ifene ‘in the

22list of works on Bharmasastra. The Sodasagopikasankhya- 

tatparyavarnsne of Tula jar alphas been printed as an appendix 

by Telivala and San kali a in the Subodhini Dasamapurvardha- 

tamasephaiaprakaraaajWith tile Lekha of §rlvallabha.The work 

is incomplete,since the first two folios of the manuscript 

were lost.In the Colpphon,Tula jar calls himselffSri-

p ur us o 11 am a j Te ar anfn t e ys s inT, The work tries to show some 

significance of the number 16 of the Sopikas,engaged in the 

lias a. in other work ‘Viruddhadharmasrayatvavivecana has been 

found in the manuscript form in the Library of Pandit 

Pettulalji in Bombay.The manuscript hears ho.168 and has

6 folios. In the beginning,the author refers to Purusottama
* \

as his Huru,’Saputran Srlmadaelryan gurUn SrTpurusottamen’. 

it the end he calls himself ,f ItrIg os vami? ur us ot t aman teras in ’ 

The manuscript was copied in Saka 1784.The said library also
i

contains another manuscript of 12 folios.The work is

K averetnasamakliya of Tula,iarlEuThe manuscript bears lo.59.
A,

22.‘.History £3 Bharmasastra. Yol.l.p.5££.



Mother manuscript $ 0.68,dated Saha 1792, contains the work

Ser vaipTabha vanirupsna.Th ough the colophon does not mention# 

the name of the anther,in the body of the text we have one 

sentence; ,fIvam samodlUnam ?Ba mataa devadevasya’ iti Siddhlnta-
/i s

rahasyatikayam asmadguruc aranaSrimatP urusottainagos vamibhir 

eva krtgjit,.It is very likely that the author is Bhatta 

Tula jar am tf--

Shi-i.E. O.Shastri says that Yenidatta Vylsa Tarkapahcm ana 

Bhattac¥rya was on eg scholarly pupil of F ur us ott ama. This 

Venidatta was a descendant of Mahidhar.a,the famous commentator 

of the ISukla Yajurveda.Be made a thorough study of the 

Madhyandina Branch of the &ukla Yajurveda,and became a great 

Pandit in sacerdotal work.Be worked as an Adhvaryu in many 

soma-sacrifices.He stayed at Bhasitola in Xashi.He studied 

Prgmmer,Vedanta,end Mimfnsa from the Paneadravida Brahmins„

He was a greet scholar of the i! avya-ny ay a, wh ie h he learn e3

from the logicians of Bengal.Be went to Bengal himself and 

got the title HJarkapsEcsheas Bhattacarye.Re wrote many

Yadagranthas and Krodapstras,mostly after a style; of the 

Mavys-nyaya.Be was at first a devotee of Radhakrsna,but

after his contact with Purusottamaslie was converted to the
%
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Pustimarga. It is also said that Venidatta accompanied 

Purus ottama in his tours.he stayed in Ifeshi for a long time 

and wrote many letters to purusottama.Sosie them have been
t

preserved in the Sarasrati Bha van,Ben eras. In these letters 

fen id at t a used to address Purus ottaaia th us: ’^rI jnan ava t arln am 

PoruvarasriPurusottaffiagosvaminam earenesu YenTdattasya kotisah 

pran atayah. ’When fenidatta’s daughter married ,Purusottama 

sent cne person with a letter to the faisnavas of Kashi,

stating that venldatia was a great scholar of the Sampradaya 

and therefore he should be helped by'them. It appears fraa 

this that the relation between Purusottama and fenldatta was 

very cordial.

icccrding to Ralpanji Shastri,{as I am told by Prof.P.H.

Bh a 11) C- op sla j T Sic ora was also a pupil of Purusottama.Some 

of his works are preserved in the manuscript library of 

Pandit Gattulalji in Bombay. One of them is May a vac! am at a kha n d an a* 

The manuscript is numbered 160.The colophon runs; ^osvsmi-
/

&r iprabhggigosvamisrivr a j an atha j imaliar a japr asadana Ramanska- 

dvipasthena Sic ora Popala jihamna... a tc. ’The manuscript is 

dated 1,8.1922 and belonged to Posvami Yadunatha.lt has 33 

folios. The work is written in prose,having the extent of’
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JL
sbout 840 slokas.Another work BhaktijSrohimukharaardana is a 

fairly long work. The manuscript So. 161 has 101 folios and 

bears the date V.S.1873. Tbs colophon runs:*Iti...Bhakti- 

dr oh im ukhamard an o... Sr oh khoddhar as thi ten a Sacors jnatiya 

OopalajHilmna...krtah? .Besides there is one more..manuscript 

K 0.178 of the same author.The work is Abaddhavadimughabadha. 

The extent is 12 f oiios.Prora all this we can say that 

Popalaji Saeora belonged to 9ahkhoddhara and lived earlier 

than T.S.1873.lt is likely that he might have been a pupil 

of Puru$ottama but one can not be definite about this.

(II).

Ending years.

fe do not know when Purusottsma died.We have noted 

above that purusottama had two sons,but both of them died 

during his life time.Purusottama therefore gave hia Seva - 

togetter with all his wealth to another Purusottama,son of

MuralTdhara who was his nearest heir.This purusottama was 

the great grandson of Vrajalankara,the fifth son of Balakrsna,

the third son of fitthalesa.iha document executed in this 

connection is given in appendix Ko. 3. Accor ding to this 

document,Purusoitama,whilst in full health and of his own
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free will gave to another Purusottama, sen of Muralidhara,

all his property,being the idol of Eaiskrsna,that of Yrajeivara
\

arid another;also the FIduka and all the ornaments and utensils 

connoted with the care and worship of these idols,with a 

house and other property situated at Surat.The document bears 

the date Thursday,tenth of the bright half of the Second 

3sadha,Y,S.1781,corresponding to 1'725 A.B.

.Some scholars are of the opinion that Purusottama did 

not live long after that.The document however cannot be taken 

as an evidence for drawing any "conclusion that Purusottama

died in or immediately after Y.8.1781.H© might have lived long 

even after that.Some scholars like lallubhai prsnvaliabhdas 

and .others are of the opinion that purusottama lived for 45 

years only.The said document is a proof against the said view, 

because in that-case he would not have lived even upto ?.S.

1781.1’elivala says that while he saw the manuscript library 

of pandit Gattulalji in Bombay.he found one manuscript dated 

7.S. 1810.The manuscript contains the HSrikaa of the .twelfth 

Skandha of the third chapter of Tat tvadTpanibandha.On the- . 

manuscript is written:’Purusotisoanam.fAgain the manuscript 

has marginal notes,containing explanations written in very
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small .handwriting,This was the practice followed by 

Purusottesa.The manuscript thus belonged to Purusottama,who 

was therefore alive in T.S,1810,

The tremendous work that Purusottama has.done,would 

also require a long life,We may say that Purusottama died 

not earlier than 7.S. 1810 corresponding to 1754 A.B.Thus

he lived a fairly long life of about 96 years,fe can not 

however be definite about this.It is really unfortunate 

that we do not know much more about the life of .such a 

great scholar and author.

)


